
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM 
 

 Meeting: Thursday, 27th January, 2022 
     at 2.00 pm (Banqueting Hall) 

 
Group Meetings at 1.15 p.m. 

 

A G E N D A 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 28th January, 2021. 
 

5 - 16 



 

 
7.   Public Participation 

 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on 01229 876322). 
  
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public 

  
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 8.   Housing Maintenance Investment Budget 2022/23   
 
To consider the Housing Maintenance Investment Budget for 2022/23 
and make recommendations to the Executive Committee. 
 

17 - 22 

(R) 9.   Housing Revenue Account Budget 2022/23   
 
To note the Expected Outturn Budget for the current year and to 
consider the Housing Revenue Account Budget for 2022/23 and 
make recommendations to the Executive Committee. 
 

23 - 30 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
 
HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM MEMBERS 
 
Councillors: Hamilton (Chairman) 

Barlow 
Brook 
Burley 
Gawne 
W. McClure 
McEwan 
Morgan 
Robson 
 

Tenant Reps:  Mrs M Anderson 
Mrs I Asbury 
Mr J Christie 
Mrs J Scott 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 
 Paula Westwood 

Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 
01229 876322 
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Published: Wednesday, 19 January 2022 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM 
 
 Meeting: Thursday 28th January, 2021 
 at 2.00 pm. (Virtual Meeting) 
 
PRESENT:- Councillors Hamilton (Chairman), Barlow, Blezard, Brook, Gawne, 
McClure, McEwan and Robson. 
 
Tenant Representative:- Mrs M. Anderson and Mr J. Christie.. 
 
Officers Present:- Janice Sharp (Assistant Director – Housing) and Paula Westwood 
(Democratic Services Officer - Member Support). 
 
9 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members 
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Burley. 
 
10 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 9th September, 2020 were taken as read and 
confirmed. 
 
11 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions 
had been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
12 – Housing Maintenance Investment Budget 2021/2022 
 
The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report with the purpose of agreeing the 
Housing Maintenance Investment Budget for 2021/2022 and approving the delivery 
of planned investments through the Procure Plus framework. 
 
It had been noted that the investment priorities had been based on the agreed five-
year Asset Management Strategy and also made reference to the findings of the 
2019 Stock Condition Survey. 
 
The 2020-2025 Asset Management Strategy had established a number of investment 
priorities to ensure the Council maintained the Decent Homes Standard, including: 
 

 Ensuring properties were safe, energy efficient and weatherproof; 

 Investments being prioritised on a just in time and worst-first basis; 

 Ensuring Tenants and Leaseholders are consulted and their views 
considered; and 

 Working collaboratively with other housing providers and Contractors.   

 
It had been noted that in accordance with section 5.4 of the 2020-2025 Asset 
Management Strategy, the delivery of planned investments and major works had 
been transferred from Cumbria Housing Partners to Procure Plus Holdings (PPH) 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



during 2017/18 and that those arrangements continued to be an effective delivery 
method providing value for money, compared with historical costs.  The new 
arrangements with PPH offered additional savings on fees and continued to deliver 
efficiencies through streamlined management, administration and monitoring of 
planned investment works.  The delivery of investments via PPH offered additional 
social value benefits throughout the Borough as savings were reinvested into 
community-based housing initiatives. 
 
Section 8.10 of the 2020-2025 Asset Management Strategy identified the results of 
the 2019 Stock Condition Survey and formed the basis of our Business Planning 
Model and provided the underlying data for our short and medium-term investments 
to ensure that:- 
 

 Properties are “safe, energy efficient and weatherproof”; and 

 Improvements are carried out on a “just in time”; “worst first” basis. 

 

The strategy further confirmed that the stock was generally in good condition but 
“there remained a number of properties which had components approaching the end 
of their useable life which would need replacing over the coming years”. In view of 
that, a number of ongoing priorities had been initiated to ensure components were 
replaced in accordance with the overarching investment priorities including:- 
 

 Completing repairs to any newly occurring non-Decent Homes by 31 
March 2025; 

 Replacing 150 central heating systems annually; 

 Replacing main roof coverings that are approaching the end of their 
component life; 

 Replacing flat roof coverings that are approaching the end of their 
component life; 

 Replacing external wall finishes that are approaching the end of their 
component life; 

 Replacing windows to 150 properties annually; 

 Upgrading 100 electrical installations annually; 

 Testing and certifying all gas appliances annually; 

 Testing and certifying all electrical installations on a five-year cycle; 

 Painting and repairing timber components on a six-year cycle; 

 Upgrading communal lighting with energy efficient bulbs or fittings;  

 Upgrading security doors to communal areas; and 

 Undertaking roofing and damp improvements to 10 blocks of garages 
annually. 

 
The Assistant Director – Housing informed Members that the Council had a duty of 
care to undertake annual gas safety checks and that it had not been possible to gain 
access to some properties due to Covid restrictions including people self isolating 
and shielding.  She added that the Council were working actively to ensure that as 
many gas safety checks as possible were carried out. 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



In respect of void properties, it had been noted that a considerable amount of rental 
income had been lost during the first lockdown when letting of properties had not 
been permitted. 
 
The proposed investment profile for 2021/2022 had been appended to the report and 
followed the priorities set out in sections 5.4 and 8.10 of the 2020-2025 Asset 
Management Strategy. 
 
RECOMMENDED:-  
 
1. To approve the Investment Budget which had been included as an appendix to 

the Report and is reproduced at Appendix 1 to these minutes; and 
 
2. To approve the delivery of planned investments through the Procure Plus 

framework. 

REFERRED ITEMS 

 
THE FOLLOWING MATTERS ARE REFERRED TO COUNCIL FOR DECISION 

 
13 – Housing Revenue Account 2021/2022 
 
The Assistant Director – Housing submitted a report with the purpose of agreeing the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget for the 2021/2022 financial year.  Her 
report also provided the Expected Outturn Budget and balance for the current year. 
 
She advised that 2020/21 had saw the first year of the new rent policy, which 
permitted social rents to be increased by CPI (based on September of the previous 
year) plus 1%. The new rent policy would be in place for at least five years including 
the current year.  Whilst that was positive in terms of generating income, the 
continued sale of Council properties through Right to Buy and general increased 
costs/inflation would remain a challenge for the Housing Revenue Account.  
 
Universal Credit continued to impact on the Housing Revenue Account’s income, and 
the recovery from the ongoing pandemic the country had been faced with would also 
bring challenges to the Housing Revenue Account’s income over the coming financial 
year.  
 
It had been noted that the Council would remain focused on controlling expenditure 
and looking at ways to generate income wherever possible.  Mitigating the impact of 
the pandemic on the service’s income stream would be of paramount importance as 
we move into 2021/22.  That would be achieved by the continuing hard work of 
Officers to engage with Tenants to resolve issues and to come to affordable 
arrangements to repay arrears alongside effective signposting to other support 
services, who can help those affected by Covid-19 to rebuild their lives and apply for 
the necessary benefits to support them in paying their rent/reducing their water 
charges. 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



3.4 Expected Outturn Budget 2020/21 
 
The outturn for the year forecasted a net surplus of £161,390 a revision to the 
budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of £105,720. 
 
3.5 Balance on the Expected Outturn for 2020/21 
 
The above was likely to result in the following movement in balances: 
 
3.5.1  Major Repair Reserve balance as at 31 March 2020:  £2,842,445.67 
   
All Capital Schemes were on target for year-end and therefore no change was 
expected to the above reserve. 
 
3.5.2  Housing Revenue Earmarked Reserve at 31 March 2020:  £2,768,314 

 
Budgeted Contribution to Reserve in year                    £105,720 
Forecast surplus                                                             £55,670 
Estimated Balance at year end                                       £2,929,704 

  Housing Fund balance at 31 March 2020:                       £1,000,000 
 
           There was no change expected in the fund balance in year. 
 
3.5.3 Voluntary Repayment Provision as at 31 March 2020: £8,135,570 
 

Forecast Provision 2020/21 £816,520  
Provision at year end £8,952,090 
 

3.6 HRA Budget 2021/22 Proposal 
 
The proposed budget for 2021/2022 had been appended to the report and the 
following factors had been taken into account:-: 
 
3.6.1 An increase by CPI plus 1% on rental increase for residential dwellings; 
 
3.6.2 There was a significant shift from revenue to capital improvement schemes in 

2020/21 in the Housing Maintenance Budget.  This had resulted in a budgeted 
contribution to earmarked reserves in year of £83,760; 

 
3.6.3 A contingency £50,000 has been retained in the draft budget which is 

referenced below; and 
 
3.6.4 Bad debt provision had increased by £148,600 to reflect the arrears of current 

and former Tenants. 
 
3.7    Dwelling Rents 
 
3.7.1  The current Rent Policy permitted social rents to be increased by CPI + 1%.  

For the 2021/22 financial year, that meant an overall increase to social rents of 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



1.5% (CPI 0.5% + 1%).  The proposed dwelling rents for 2021/22 (based on an 
average) had been presented as follows:- 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.7.2 The expenditure within the HRA had been agreed through the democratic 

process.   However, occasions arise which result in under and overspends 
with the account. 

 
3.7.3 As agreed previously, the use of the earmarked HRA reserve managed budget 

volatility as and when required within the parameter of the overall agreed 
budget.   £83,760 had been added for 2020/21 which related to housing 
maintenance programming. 

 
3.7.4 The HRA fund balance would be assessed by the Director of Resources.  
 
3.8 Garage Rents   
 
3.8.1  It had been agreed that the Council could adopt the approach to increase 

garage rents in line with dwelling rents from 2020/21 for the five-year period 
the new rent policy was in place.  

 
3.8.2  Garage rents would be increased by 1.5% (CPI 0.5% + 1%) in 2021/22. The 

proposed garage rents for 2021/22 had been presented as follows:- 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
3.9  Additional considerations 
 
3.9.1 Service Charges e.g. Communal Area Cleaning 
 

Agree Officers increase charges as necessary to reflect any increases in 
contractual arrangements for the delivery of the service.  Charges to be 
adjusted as and when necessary to reflect recovery of the cost of provision, 
with no additional administrative costs. 

 

 52 Weeks 53 Weeks 48 Weeks 

 
Average rent 
increase 
over 48 weeks 
= £1.19 per week 

2018/19 £74.41  £80.61 

2019/20  £73.67 £81.34 

2020/21 £75.76  £82.07 

2021/22 £76.86  £83.26 

 No 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 
Increased 
Revenue 
2021/22 

Garage rate 1 27 £7.38 £7.58 £7.69 

£3,436 Garage rate 2 451 £10.19 £10.45 £10.61 

TOTAL 478 £230,157 £236,150 £239,586 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



3.9.2 Service & Facility Charges for Dispersed & Furnished Properties 
 

The future funding of service charges had now been agreed and it would be 
exempt from Universal Credit and the charges could continue to be claimed by 
housing benefit. 

 
The Assistant Director – Housing had suggested that the charges be 
increased as above 3.9.1 to reflect recovery of the cost of provision with no 
additional admin costs.  

 
3.9.3 Charges for enquiries in respect of re-sale of former Council property & 

charge for administration of leases     
 

Following agreement last year, some charges had been introduced for resale 
enquiries and leaseholder administration to ensure the Council were 
recovering the costs to administer such activities.  It was envisaged the 
remainder of the charges would be introduced for the start of the next financial 
year 2021/22.  This would be incorporated in the Council’s fees and charges 
for the financial year. 

 
3.9.4 Adelphi Court  
 

The block of 12 flats was currently leased to Richmond Fellowship as a 
supported housing scheme.  The current lease ended on 31st July, 2020 and it 
had been agreed by Executive Committee on 30th September 2020 to renew 
the lease for a further four years.  Under the terms of the lease, the Assistant 
Director – Housing had recommended that the annual rent charged be 
increased by CPI plus 1% in accordance with the rental increase for residential 
dwellings.  

 
3.9.5 ASB Action Ltd - Service Level Agreement 2021/22 
 

The Council’s aim was to provide homes in good repair and on estates where 
people would like to live. 

 
To enable the Housing Service to achieve that, effective management of anti-
social behaviour was imperative. 

 
ASB Action Ltd. provide a specialist service assisting social housing providers 
to effectively deal with such issues, including specialist legal advice at short 
notice for a fixed fee ensuring value for money. 
 
The Assistant Director – Housing had recommended Members agree to renew 
the annual Service Level Agreement with ASB Action Ltd. and suspend the 
requirement to obtain alternative quotes with regard to use of specialist 
services in accordance with Barrow Borough Council’s Purchasing Procedure 
(September 2017).  

 
The cost of a six-day Service Level Agreement, including training was £2,871 
plus VAT.      

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 
3.10 Priorities for the Year 2021/22   

 
During the financial year there would be several factors which would have an 
impact on the service.  To summarise:- 
 

3.10.1 Maintaining a balanced Housing Revenue Account 
 

The Government had agreed to allow social landlords to increase their rents 
by CPI plus 1% in 2021/22 financial year. 
 
This was positive news; however, the number of properties continued to 
reduce requiring the need for continuous financial control and consideration of 
the future models of service delivery.  
 

3.10.2 Housing Management System - Cx 
 
2020 had seen significant progress made with Cx in a number of ways, most 
notably the development of the arrears policies within Cx to allow more 
effective management of rent accounts in arrears (both current and former 
arrears).  The system now had an inbuilt tool for Officers to identify rent 
accounts at various stages and a clear suggested escalation process with the 
ability to report and action letters along the way.  This had been a big step 
forward in how the Service managed current and former arrears.  Officers 
could also now communicate with Tenants via Cx by sending text messages 
and e-mails directly from the system. 
 
This year had also seen a great deal of time spent on improving the report 
functionality associated with Cx and a suite of reports were now available and 
had been integrity checked for use in financial reconciliation and performance 
reporting, as well as supporting the submission of the many annual returns 
required by the Government and other organisations. 
 
Year-end and rent review 2019/20 had been much more successful and 
Officers had been confident in the use of the system for that purpose.  The 
support of Civica and the IT consultant would still be required to support the 
Service through these processes; however, it was hoped that upgrading to a 
newer release would improve that. 
 
The priority for 2021 was to upgrade the current version of the software 
installed.  Discussions were ongoing with Civica regarding that and it was 
anticipated that a test version would be installed on the server in the new year 
to enable some initial ‘smoke testing’ to identify any ‘showstoppers’ that would 
prevent the Service from going live with the new version.  The upgrade was 
essential to ensure that continued support was available from Civica when 
issues are logged with them. 
 
The new version would offer a friendlier and more efficient user interface, new 
features and a far improved Tenant Portal, a self-serve facility offered by 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



Civica for Tenants to access their rent account and other related information 
(formerly provided via See My Data). 
 
It was hoped that Tenant Hub (the name picked by Tenants for the portal) 
would have been launched and rolled out in 2020, however due to priorities 
having to move to manage the effects of Covid-19, and also some technical 
issues which would prevent the user having a seamless experience when 
accessing the portal, the decision has been made to launch Tenant Hub in 
2021 to coincide with the software upgrade, which would offer a much more 
user friendly Hub. 
 
Action:  

The development of the Cx system would continue as a key priority across the 
service during 2021/22. 

 
3.10.3 Welfare Changes & Income Collection 

 
The full service roll out of Universal Credit had commenced on 5th December, 
2018.  Members were aware of the change this had introduced and Officers 
continued to work to mitigate the effect of the roll out. 
 
It was evident that it continued to put a significant risk on the income received 
and puts continual increased pressure on the Operations Team to mitigate the 
effect to maximise income; rent collection would be a key priority for staff.  
 
Action:   

Operations Team monitor impact of roll out and adopt best practice to 
minimise the risk to the income of the service. 
 

3.10.4 Covid Impact and Income Collection 
 

Despite initial concerns when lockdown was introduced in March, 2020, there 
had been no negative impact on rent income.  Staff had worked effectively to 
ensure Tenants’ benefit claims, including Housing Benefit, Universal Credit 
and alternative pay arrangements had been in payment throughout the year 
2020/21. 
 
Action:  

Staff would continue to work with new Universal Credit claimants to provide 
support with the proposed extension to the furlough scheme.  

 
3.10.5 Water Rates Collection 
 

The current contract to collect water charges had been extended by two years 
following agreement at Housing Management Forum on 13th September, 
2018 to assist with the maintenance of the HRA. 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



It ends in March 2021 and it had been agreed by Executive Committee on 9th 
September, 2020 to renew the contract with United Utilities for a further five 
years to maximize the commission the service would receive. 
 
The commission the service would receive in 2021/22 was estimated to be 
£162,480. 
 

Summary 
 
The proposed budget provided assurance that the Council was controlling 
expenditure to meet the costs for service provision, taking into account the reducing 
number of housing stock and subsequent loss of rental income. 

 
The use of the earmarked reserve provided provision for flexibility in the service, 
together with ensuring a balanced budget over the next financial year 2021/22, 
should additional reductions or efficiencies have not been identified.  
 
RECOMMENDED:-  
 
1. To note the information provided within the report; 

 
2. To note the Expected Outturn Budget for 2020/2021 would be a surplus of 

£161,390 including the original budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of 
£105,720; 

 
3. To note the balances on the Expected Outturn Budget for 2020/2021; 

 
4. To agree the basis on which the 2021/2022 draft Budget had been proposed in 

points 3.6.1 to 3.6.4 of the report. 
 

5. To agree dwelling rent increase of 1.5% as outlined in point 3.7 of the report; 
 

6. To agree garage dwelling rent increase of 1.5% as outlined in point 3.8 of the 
report; 

 
7. To agree or note as outlined in points 3.9.1 to 3.9.5 of the report, the other 

additional considerations; and 
 

8. To agree the approach to priorities for the year 2021/2022 raised in points 3.10.1 
to 3.10.5 of the report. 

 
The meeting closed at 2.54 pm. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Total Budget £5,156,006  

Routine Property Repairs Cyclical Repairs Major Improvement Work MRA - Capitalised Improvement Work

£777,165  Tenant Demand Repairs £263,965  Gas Servicing/Breakdown £100,000     Disabled Adaptations £343,800  Rewires (PP)

£195,161   Preliminary Costs £28,560  Door Entry Maintenance £5,000     Asbestos Surveys £470,758  Heating and Insulation (PP)

-£5,000   Rechargeable Repair Income £180,000  External Decoration (PP) £15,000     Decoration (After Major Works) £18,000  Bathrooms (PP)

-£14,106   Leasehold Repairs Income £81,000  Electrical Testing £20,000     Fencing and Gates £50,000  Kitchens (PP - VOIDS)

£12,735  Ground Maintenance £40,000     Communal Lighting (PP) £465,600  Window Replacements (PP)

Void Property Repairs £15,000  Tipping Charges £10,000     Communal Painting (PP) £760,665  Re-Roofing Houses/Flats (PP)

£10,188  TV Aerials £30,000     Garage Improvements £75,000  Communal Door replacements

£439,711  Void Property Repairs £40,000  Consultancy Fees £18,000     Shop Improvements

£147,447   Preliminary Costs £7,800  Legal Fees £5,000     Community Centres

£9,790   EPC Surveys -£26,919   Service Charge Income £5,000     EEB Improvements PP = Procure Plus

£461,686     External Rendering/Pointing (PP)

£100,000     Covid Contingency Allowance

£0   Service Charge Income

£1,550,167 £612,329 £809,686 £2,183,823

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Housing Management Forum 

Thursday, 27 January 2022 

Housing Maintenance Investment Budget 2022-23 

 
 

Report from:   Jan Sharp, Deputy Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Les Davies, Head of Asset Management 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions 
 

 Approval of the Housing Maintenance Investment budget for 2022/2023. 
Investment priorities are based on the agreed five-year 2020-2025 Asset 
Management Plan and makes reference to the findings of the 2019 Stock 
Condition Survey.  

 

2.0  Recommendation 
 

2.1   It is recommended that Housing Management Forum recommend to Executive 
Committee that they:  

 

(1) Approve the investment budget shown in Appendix 1; and 
 
(2) Approve delivery of planned investments through the Procure Plus 

framework. 

 

3.0   Background and Proposals  
 
3.1  The 2020-2025 Asset Management Strategy established a number of investment 

priorities to ensure the Council maintains the Decent Homes Standard, including: 
 

 Ensure properties are safe, energy efficient and weatherproof; 

 Investments are prioritised on a just-in-time and worst-first basis; 

 Ensure tenants and leaseholders are consulted and their views considered; 
and 

 To work collaboratively with other housing providers and contractors.   
 

3.2  Section 5.4 of the 2020–2025 Asset Management Strategy confirms the delivery 

of planned investments and major works was transferred from Cumbria Housing 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



Partners to Procure Plus Holdings (PPH) during 2017/18.  The arrangements 

continue to be an effective delivery method providing value for money, compared 

with historical costs.  The arrangements with PPH offer additional savings on 

fees and continue to deliver efficiencies through streamlined management, 

administration and monitoring of planned investment works.  The delivery of 

investments via PPH offers additional social value benefits throughout the 

Borough as savings are reinvested into community-based housing initiatives. 

3.3  Section 8.10 of the 2020-2025 Asset Management Strategy identified the results 

of the 2019 Stock Condition Survey form the basis of our Business Planning 

Model and provide the underlying data for our short and medium-term 

investments to ensure: 

 Properties are “safe, energy efficient and weatherproof”; and 

 Carry out improvements on a “just-in-time”; “worst-first” basis. 

 

3.4 The strategy further confirms the stock is generally in good condition but “there 

remain a number of properties which have components approaching the end of 

their useable life which will need replacing over the coming years”.  In view of 

this we have initiated a number of ongoing priorities to ensure components are 

replaced in accordance with our overarching investment priorities including: 

 Complete repairs to any newly occurring non-Decent Homes by 31 March 
2025; 

 Replace 150 central heating systems annually; 

 Replace main roof coverings that are approaching the end of their 
component life; 

 Replace flat roof coverings that are approaching the end of their component 
life; 

 Replace external wall finishes that are approaching the end of their 
component life; 

 Replace windows to 150 properties annually; 

 Upgrade 100 electrical installations annually; 

 Test and certify all gas appliances annually; 

 Test and certify all electrical installations on a five-year cycle; 

 Paint and repair timber components on a six-year cycle; 

 Upgrade communal lighting with energy efficient bulbs or fittings; 

 Upgrade security doors to communal areas; and 

 Undertake roofing and damp improvements to 10 blocks of garages annually. 

 
3.5 The investment profile for 2022-2023 shown in Appendix 1 of this report follows 

the priorities set out in sections 5.4 and 8.10 of the 2020-2025 Asset 

Management Strategy.  The proposed budget includes an additional £250,000 of 

unplanned roofing works identified during 2021.  These works were not identified 

during the 2019 Stock Condition Survey and relate to degradation of the 

underfelt to 80 flats in the Central area of the borough. 

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



 

4.0    Consultation 
 

The 2020-2025 Asset Management Plan has been shared with tenant and 
leaseholder forum group members. 

 
5.0   Alternative Options 
 

 The alternative option is not to approve the investment budget but this is not 
recommended as failure to invest in the housing stock will increase the risk of 
non-compliance with regard to gas safety, failure to meet the Decent Homes 
standard and increase the risk of litigation under the Pre-Action Protocol for 
Housing Conditions Claims (England). 

 

6.0      Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  
 
6.1      The proposed investment budget contributes to the Council’s vision “For our 

Borough to be great place to live work and visit” and will assist the Council in 
meeting the Priority of Place to “Create a vibrant, safe and welcoming place 
where people want to live”. 

 
7.0      Implications  
 
Financial, Resources and Procurement  
 
7.1  The 2022/23 Housing Revenue Budget is presented separately on the agenda 

and the housing maintenance investments will be undertaken within that budget - 
a total of £5,705,407 as shown in Appendix 1.  Programme volatility, unplanned 
or newly arising works will be managed through the earmarked reserve. 

 
Legal  
 
7.2 The investment budget has regard to current legislation including: 
 

 Housing Act 1985; 

 Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998; and 

 Equality Act 2010. 

 

7.3 Under the Housing Act 1985, the Council has a duty to identify and assess risks 
under the Housing, Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS).  

 
7.4 Under the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998, the Council has a 

duty to repair and maintain gas pipework, flues and appliances in safe condition 
and to ensure gas safety check is completed annually on each appliance and 
flue. 

 
7.5 Under the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a duty to ensure any policies it 

adopts do not directly or indirectly discriminate against any particular groups of 
people.  The Council has undertaken an equality impact assessment to ensure 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



the policy is fair to all customers and to demonstrate the Council has discharged 
its public sector equality duty in this respect.  

 
Equality and Diversity  
 
7.5 An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out for this report. The 

assessment indicated no adverse impact on any of the nine protected 
characteristics of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
Risk  
 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Failure to meet statutory 
requirements with regard to 
gas safety and Housing, 
Health and Safety Rating 
System (HHSRS). 

The Council could be 
open to legal challenge 
which would incur costs 
outside existing budgets. 

Approval of the Housing 
Investment budget. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Funding from the HRA for 
repairs and maintenance may 
not be available. 

The Council could be 
open to legal challenge, 
incurring costs outside 
existing budgets. 

HRA budget availability 
periodically reviewed by 
the Council’s 
Management Team. 

 

Contact Officers  

Les Davies, Head of Asset Management ldavies@barrowbc.gov.uk  

Tel. (01229) 876540 

 

Appendices attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Investment Budget for 2022/23 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

2020-2025 Asset Management Plan 
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk//_resources/assets

/attachment/full/0/8668.pdf  

 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 8

mailto:ldavies@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/8668.pdf
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/8668.pdf


$yjn01efh.xls

Total Budget £5,705,407    

Routine Property Repairs Cyclical Repairs Major Improvement Work MRA - Capitalised Improvement Work

£978,156     Tenant Demand Repairs £292,012     Gas Servicing/Breakdown £100,000     Disabled Adaptations £343,800     Rewires (PP)

£168,399      Preliminary Costs £28,560     Door Entry Maintenance £5,000     Asbestos Surveys £470,758     Heating and Insulation (PP)

-£5,000       Rechargeable Repair Income £180,000     External Decoration (PP) £15,000     Decoration (After Major Works) £336,000     Window Replacements (PP)

-£6,188       Leasehold Repairs Income £81,000     Electrical Testing £20,000     Fencing and Gates £760,700     Re-Roofing Houses/Flats (PP)

£12,735     Ground Maintenance £40,000     Communal Lighting (PP) £250,000     Re-Roofing Works (PP) (Unplanned)

Void Property Repairs £15,000     Tipping Charges £10,000     Communal Painting (PP)

£10,168     TV Aerials £36,000     Shop Improvements

£852,651     Void Property Repairs £40,000     Consultancy Fees £5,000     Community Centres

£190,997      Preliminary Costs £7,800     Legal Fees £5,000     EEB Improvements

£10,615      EPC Surveys -£48,797       Service Charge Income £608,333     External Rendering/Pointing (PP) PP = Procure Plus

-£108,292       Service Charge Income

           

 

£2,189,630 £618,478 £736,041 £2,161,258  

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\2\6\AI00007623\$yjn01efh.xls 19/01/22

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Housing Management Forum 

Thursday, 27 January 2022 

Housing Revenue Account Budget 2022/2023 

 
 

Report from:   Jan Sharp, Deputy Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Rebecca Halton, Head of Business Support 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
 

 The purpose of the report is to agree a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget 
for the 2022/23 financial year and provide the Expected Outturn Budget and 
balance for the current year.  

 
2.0  Recommendations  

 
2.1 It is recommended that Housing Management Forum recommend to 

Executive Committee that they: 

 

(1)   Note the information provided in the Report; 

 

(2)   Note the Expected Outturn Budget for 2021/22 is a surplus of £191,890  

including the original budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves 

of £83,760; 

 

(3)   Note the balances on the Expected Outturn Budget for 2021/22; 

 

(4)   Agree the basis on which the 2022/23 draft Budget is proposed in 3.6.1 

to 3.6.3 of the report; 

 

(5) Agree dwelling rent increase of 3.1% outlined in 3.7 of the report; 

 

(6) Agree garage rent increase of 3.1% outlined in 3.8 of the report;  

 

(7) Agree or note as outlined in 3.9.1 to 3.9.4 of the report, the other 

additional considerations; and 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



(8)   Agree the approach to priorities for year 2022/23 raised in 3.10.1 to 

3.10.5 of the report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  
 
3.1 The MHCLG’s policy on rents for social housing permits Local Authorities to 

increase social rents by up to CPI (based on September of the previous year) 
plus 1% each year.  In 2021/22 this permitted the Council to increase social rents 
by 1.5%.  CPI in 2021/22 is unusually high at 3.1%. This would permit the 
Council to increase rents by up to 4.1% (CPI+1%).  However, it is considered 
that such an increase would not be reasonable and it is instead being proposed 
that rents are increased by CPI only at 3.1%.  

 
3.2  The continued sale of Council properties through Right to Buy and general 

increased costs/inflation will remain a challenge for the Housing Revenue 
Account.  Increased costs associated with the economy recovering from the 
Covid-19 pandemic will also bring challenges to the Housing Revenue Account’s 
income over the coming financial year.  Local Government Reform and the 
formation of the new Unitary Authority will likely have implications on the Housing 
Revenue Account moving forward as well, which needs to be considered.  It is 
for these reasons, it is considered an increase in rents should occur however not 
to the maximum permitted. 

 
3.3  The Council will remain focused on controlling expenditure and looking at ways 

to generate income wherever possible.  Mitigating the impact of the pandemic on 
the Service’s income stream will be of paramount importance as we move into 
2022/23.  This will be achieved by the continuing hard work of Officers to engage 
with Tenants to resolve issues and to come to affordable arrangements to repay 
arrears alongside effective signposting to other support services, who can help 
those affected by Covid-19 to rebuild their lives and apply for the necessary 
benefits to support them in paying their rent/reducing their water charges. 

 
3.4 Expected Outturn Budget 2021/22 
 

The outturn for the year forecast a net surplus of £191,890, a revision to the 
budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of £83,760. 
 

3.5  Balance on the Expected Outturn for 2021/22 
 

The above is likely to result in the following movement in balances. 
 

3.5.1 Major Repair Reserve balance as at 31 March 2021:  £3,770,905 
 
 Forecast underspend on Major Works to year end £   100,000 
 
 Major Repairs Reserve forecast balance as at 
 31 March 2022 £3,870,905 
   

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 9



3.5.2   Housing Revenue Earmarked Reserve at 31 March 21  £4,388,072 

 Budgeted Contribution to Reserve in year                    £     83,760 

 Forecast surplus  £   108,130 

 Estimated Balance at year end                                       £4,579,962 

 

 Housing Fund balance at 31 March 2021:                       £1,000,000 

           There is no change expected in the fund balance in year. 
 
3.5.3 Voluntary Repayment Provision as at 31 March 2021: £8,952,090 

 Forecast Provision 2021/22 £   816,520  

 Provision at year end £9,768,610 

 
3.6 HRA Budget 2022/23 Proposal 
 
 In proposing the budget for 2022/23 – Appendix 1 (to be tabled at the meeting), 

the following factors have been taken into account: 
 
3.6.1 An increase by CPI on rental increase for residential dwellings. 
 
3.6.2 A contingency £50,000 has been retained in the draft budget. 
 
3.6.3 Bad debt provision increased by £157,030 to reflect the arrears of current and 

former tenants. 
 
3.7    Dwelling Rents 
 
3.7.1  Based on the proposal to increase social rents by 3.1% (CPI) for the 2022/23 

financial year, the proposed dwelling rents for 2022/23 (based on an average) 
are shown below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
3.7.2 The expenditure within the HRA is agreed through the democratic process.  

However, occasions arise which result in under and overspends within the 
account. 

 
3.7.3 As agreed previously, the use of the earmarked HRA reserve manages budget 

volatility as and when required within the parameter of the overall agreed budget.   
 

 52 Weeks 53 Weeks 48 Weeks 

 
Average rent increase 
over 48 weeks 
= £2.58 per week 

2019/20  £73.67 £81.34 

2020/21 £75.64  £81.94 

2021/22 £76.76  £83.16 

2022/23 £79.14  £85.74  

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



3.7.4 The HRA fund balance will be assessed by the Director of Resources.  
 
3.8 Garage Rents   
 

3.8.1  It was agreed at Executive Committee in January 2020 that the Council could 
adopt the approach to increase garage rents in line with dwelling rents from 
2020/21 for the five-year period the new rent policy is in place.  

 

3.8.2  Based on this, garage rents would increase by 3.1% for the 2022/23 financial 
year, the proposed garage rents for 2022/23 (based on an average) are shown 
below: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

    
 
3.9  Additional considerations 
 
3.9.1 Service charges e.g. communal area cleaning 
 

Agree Officers increase charges as necessary to reflect any increases in 
contractual arrangements for the delivery of the service.  Charges to be adjusted 
as and when necessary to reflect recovery of the cost of provision with no 
additional administrative costs. 

 
3.9.2 Service & Facility Charges for Dispersed & Furnished Properties 
 

The future funding of service charges has now been agreed and it will be exempt 
from Universal Credit and the charges can continue to be claimed by housing 
benefit. 

 
It is proposed the charges are increased as above 3.9.1 to reflect recovery of the 
cost of provision with no additional admin costs.  
 

3.9.3 Adelphi Court  
 

The block of 12 flats is currently leased to Richmond Fellowship as a supported 
housing scheme.  The lease was renewed for a further three years with effect 
from June 2021 until 31st May 2024.  An increase of 1.5% was applied to the rent 
reflective of the increase to social rents in general for the 2021/22 financial year 
as agreed.  A new rent review clause has been inserted enabling the Council to 
increase the annual rent in line with social rents on the anniversary of the lease 
each year. 
 

 No 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 
Increased 
Revenue 
2022/23 

Garage rate 1 27 £7.58 £7.69    £7.93 

£7,429 Garage rate 2 451 £10.45 £10.61   £10.94 

TOTAL 478 £236,150 £239,652 £247,081 

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



3.9.4 ASB Action Ltd - Service Level Agreement 2022/23 
 

Our aim is to provide homes in good repair and on Council estates where people 
would like to live. 

 
To enable the Housing Service to achieve this, effective management of anti-
social behaviour is imperative. 

 
ASB Action Ltd. provide a specialist service assisting social housing providers to 
effectively deal with such issues, including specialist legal advice at short notice 
for a fixed fee ensuring value for money. 
 
It is recommended that Members agree to renew the annual Service Level 
Agreement with ASB Action Ltd. and suspend the requirement to obtain 
alternative quotes with regard to use of specialist services in accordance with 
Barrow Borough Council’s Purchasing Procedure (September 2017).  

 
The cost of a ten-day Service Level Agreement, including training is £4,785 plus 
VAT.      
 

3.10 Priorities for the Year 2022/23   
 
During the financial year there are several factors which will have an impact on 
the service.  To summarise: 
 

3.10.1 Maintain a balanced Housing Revenue Account 
 

The Government allowing social landlords to increase their rents by up to CPI 
plus 1% over a five year period supports the Service being able to achieve this. 
 
Whilst this is a positive step, the number of properties continues to reduce and 
external pressures increase requiring the need for continuous financial control 
and consideration of the future models of service delivery.  
 

3.10.2 Housing Management System - Cx 
 
The priority for 2021 has been to upgrade the current version of the software we 
have installed on the servers to 21.2 (currently we have 18.8.9 installed).  This 
has required a server upgrade on the internal environment to enable us to move 
to a newer version of the software and has involved a joined-up approach 
between Housing, IT Department, Civica and an external Consultant.  Following 
a robust testing process, two ‘show stopping’ issues were identified, which 
required a ‘hotfix’ from Civica before going live with the new version.  It is 
expected these fixes will be available and applied for testing early January 2022 
at which point, provided successful, a ‘go live’ date will be scheduled with Civica 
to launch 21.2. 
 
The new version will offer a more user friendly and efficient user interface, new 
features and a much-improved tenant portal, which is the self-serve facility 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



offered by Civica for Tenants to access their rent account and other related 
information. 
 
It will also enable us to focus on improving the way we monitor void properties 
within Cx and also record interactions with our customers. 
 
Action:  

Embedding the new version and integrating it’s new and improved functionality 
into Housing processes will be a key priority across the service during 2022/23. 
 
Action:  

The development of the Cx system will continue as a key priority across the 
service during 2022/23. 

 
3.10.3 Welfare Changes & Income Collection  

 
The full service roll out of Universal Credit commenced on 5th December, 2018.  
Members will be aware of the change this has introduced, and officers continue 
to work to mitigate the effect of the roll out. 
 
It is evident it continues to put a significant risk on the income we receive and 
puts continual increased pressure on the Operations Team to mitigate the effect 
to maximise our income; rent collection will be a key priority for staff.  
 
Action:   

Operations Team to continue to monitor impact of roll out and adopt best 
practice to minimise the risk to the income of the service. 
 

3.10.4 Covid Impact and Income Collection 
 

Staff continue to work hard to ensure tenants’ benefit claims, including housing 
benefit, universal credit and alternative pay arrangements are optimized and 
Tenants are kept up to date with the help and support available to them to deal 
with the impact Covid-19 may have had on their health and wellbeing.  
 
Action:  

Staff will continue to monitor arrears and identify those individuals who may be 
struggling financially, referring them on to our inhouse support team or 
signposting them to other agencies who may be able to help where necessary. 
 

3.10.5 Water Rates Collection 
 

The current contract to collect water charges has been extended to 2026 
following agreement at Executive Committee in September 2020. 

 
The commission the Service will receive in 2022/23 is estimated to be 
£165,394.45. 
 

Page 28

Agenda Item 9



3.11 Summary 
 

The proposed budget provides assurance the Council is controlling expenditure 
to meet the costs for service provision, taking into account the reducing number 
of housing stock and subsequent loss of rental income. 
 
The use of the earmarked reserve provides provision for flexibility in the service, 
together with ensuring a balanced budget over the next financial year 2022/23 
should additional reductions or efficiencies have not been identified.  
 

4.0 Consultation  
 
4.1 Not applicable.  
 
5.0  Alternative Options  
 
5.1 No increase to dwelling and garage rents for the 2022/23 financial year- this was 

not considered a viable option when taking into consideration increased cost 
pressures around utilities, which will impact on operational costs; inflationary 
pressures relating to the Maintenance contracts and the additional pressures on 
the HRA that a unitary model might bring  

 
5.2 Increase to the limit permitted by the Policy of CPI + 1%- it was felt that imposing 

the full level of increase permitted, given the high CPI rate, would have a 
potential negative impact on those tenants who are not entitled to full rent 
rebates or those only eligible for partial rebates. Social housing rents need to 
remain affordable. 

 
6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  
 
6.1 The proposed Housing Revenue Account budget contributes to the Council’s 

vision “For our Borough to be great place to live work and visit” and will assist the 
Council in meeting the Priority of Place to “Create a vibrant, safe and welcoming 
place where people want to live”. 

 
7.0 Implications  
 
7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  
 
7.1.1 The recommendation has financial implications as detailed in the report.  
 
7.2 Legal  
 
7.2.1 The recommendation has no legal implications. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



7.3  Equality and Diversity  
 
7.3.1  An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out for this report. The 

assessment indicated no adverse impact on any of the nine protected 
characteristics of the Equality Act 2010.  

 
Risk  
 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

 
Funding from HRA 
may not be available.  

  
The Council could be open 
to challenge incurring costs 
outside existing budgets. 
 

. 
HRA budget availability 
periodically reviewed by 
Management Team. 
 

 

Contact Officers  

Rebecca Halton, Head of Business Support email: rhalton@barrowbc.gov.uk                   

Tel. (01229) 876549 

 

Appendices attached to this Report  
 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 
Housing Revenue Account Budget 2022/2023 (to be tabled at 

the meeting) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 9

mailto:rhalton@barrowbc.gov.uk

	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	HMF Mins 28JAN21 - Appendix 1

	8 Housing Maintenance Investment Budget 2022/23
	Appendix 1

	9 Housing Revenue Account Budget 2022/23

